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RFP No. 1-13-C044 
Website redesign, implementation and support 

for the 
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 

 
Questions and Answers 
 
Notice: Questions may have been edited for clarity and relevance. 
 
1. Web Site Design & Supportable Devices: Will the redesigned web site be developed to be 

viewed easily on any browser across both PC and Apple platforms (on both desktop and 
laptop computers)?  
 
Answer: Yes.   
 

2. Is the expectation that a single code base (adaptive design) would be used for the support of 
Smartphones, iPads and or is the expectation that an individual application, would need to be 
designed and developed? 
 
Answer: Yes a single code base is preferable.  
 

3. Features & Functions: Is the expectation that the mobile versions of the website would handle 
a subset of the features and functions of the web site?; this is recommended only to focus on 
the features a user would need from a mobile devices (i.e. real-time data). 

 
Answer: Yes, the mobile versions should handle real time data as a minimum.     
 

4. Multi-Lingual: Is the expectation that mobile applications would support multi-lingual? What 
are the 4 languages mentioned that would be expected? 
 
Answer: Yes.  Mobile applications must support multi-lingual translations. See Amendment 

03.    
 

5. For all external data feeds, can you confirm if there are existing API's for the awarded partner 
to access or do we need to do custom development to facilitate this?  
 
Answer:  Feeds to/from the current website are:  
 

IAD Flights: A text file is sent to our FTP server from the IAD MUFIDS vendor every 5 
minutes. There is no API, the text file is parsed via a custom .Net console application, 
  
DCA Flights: An XML file is sent to our FTP server from the DCA MUFIDS vendor every 5 
minutes. There is no API, the XML file is parsed via a custom .Net console application, 
  
DCA Parking: An XML file is sent to our FTP server from the DCA Parking vendor every 5 
minutes. There is no API, the XML file is parsed via a custom .Net console application, 
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IAD Real Time Security Screening Wait Time Display: An XML file is sent to our FTP 
server from every 5 minutes.  There is no API, the XML file is parsed via a custom .Net 
console application, 
  
IAD & DCA weather: A custom .Net console application running every 5 minutes to pull 
weather information via Yahoo web services, 
   
DCA and IAD flight schedules are OAG data in an iFrame, 
  
DCA and IAD flight feeds are provided as JSON files via mwaa.com url to a limited set of 
external vendors (Washington Flyer Magazine website, etc) for consumption.  
 

Please note:  We are expecting additional data provider feeds to be identified as part of the 
design. 
 

6. Does MUFIDS provide parking information and other non-flight related data on the website? 
 
Answer: See response to question #5. 
 

7. For the site search functionality would you be open to using Google CSE (Custom Search 
Engine)?  
 
Answer: Yes.  Propose the solution you believe to be most cost effective. 
 

8. Please identify which version of RedDot is currently deployed/in use? 
 
Answer: Open Text Web Solutions – Web Site Management 10 (previously known as 

RedDot).  Please note that all current licenses are in use.   
 

9. Please confirm that your existing CMS, RedDot is not required technology.   
 
Answer: Open Text Web Solutions – Web Site Management 11 or higher is required 
technology.  See Amendment 03. 
 

10. Can you please provide us with an overview of internal coding and development resources 
(staff), as well as IT support to ensure that we maximize your internal resources with our 
proposed solution? 
 
Answer: We have one full time web developer on staff augmented by a web supervisor (part 

time). 
 

11. Of the 4,000 pages of content, how many pages content must remain "as-is" per MWAA 
requirements? 
 
Answer: No pages must remain totally as-is.  Approximately 90% of the pages on the current 

site are static, and will remain within whatever framing is consistent with your 
proposal. 

 
12. Of the 4,000 pages of content, is a "core content" taxonomy or list currently identified for 

translation into other languages? 
 
Answer: See Attachment 01, Statement of Work page 9. 
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13. Confirm that the Authority requires consulting, web-design and development services for the 

website and that there will be no additional purchases of hardware needed for the project 
Example, servers, storage etc. 
 
Answer: Hardware is outside the scope of this solicitation. 
 

14. How did MWAA determine that $100k-$200K would be sufficient to support the requirements 
listed in the statement of work? Will MWAA consider proposals that have budgets over $200K 
with strong reasoning and killer creative? 
 
Answer: The Authority will consider all proposals that meet the requirements of the 

solicitation.   
 

15. Are you currently using ad serving technologies? Will we need to install an ad server? 
 
Answer: No, the Airports Authority is not currently using ad serving technologies and 

hardware is outside the scope of this solicitation.  However, the Airports Authority 
will consider website advertising during the design phase. 

 
16. How many publishers will you have?  

 
Answer: There will be approximately 10 publishers.   
 

17. How many levels of access will there be? 
 
Answer: Each user should be restricted to their area of specialization while the web staff 

should have broad access. 
 

18. Do you already have a private bulletin board? 
 
Answer: No. 
 

19. What analytics tools do you currently use and/or what do you want to use? 
 
Answer: The Airports Authority currently utilizes Web Trends.  See Amendment 03, Revised 

Statement of Work.  
 

20. Are language translations to be included in the base contract? If so, which language 
translations are required and which content is to be translated (html, pdfs, etc)? 
 
Answer:  Yes, language translations are to be included in the base contract.  Html is required.  

See Amendment 03.  
 

21. How would you like for us to scope for an open-ended design process? 
 
Answer: See Amendment 03.  
 

22. What is standard for your help manual? 
 
Answer: Industry standard documentation and help manuals are expected. 
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23. How many people are involved in your training and what are their roles? 
 
Answer: The web supervisor provides one-on-one training for the approximately 10 users 

who provide limited input to the current website. 
 

24. Who is originating content? We assume a large role in processing/editing/refining content but 
trying to get handle on the scope. 
 
Answer: Per the Statement of Work, approximately 90% of the pages on the current site are 

static (e.g. financial reports, press releases, etc.).  A number of non-static pages 
(e.g. flight schedules, available parking spaces, etc.) are obtained via automated 
interfaces with other system.  The remaining information (e.g. open positions, 
contracting opportunities, etc.) is provided by a limited number of Authority 
personnel who are responsible for their content. 

 
25. Please confirm system and platform requirements. Can vendors propose, and will MWAA 

accept, alternate technologies and platform in an effort to maximize the functionality and 
budget on this project?  
 
Answer: The system platform and software being used are Windows 2008 SP2 Operating 

system, Windows IIS 7 Web server, Microsoft SQL 2005, Open Text Web Solutions 
10 (previously known as RedDot).  No, the Authority will not accept alternative 
technologies and platforms.    

 
26. What is the exact platform and software being used in support of the current site? 

 
Answer: See response to question 25.  

 
27. Is MWAA satisfied with the usability and functionality of the current CMS? 

 
Answer: Yes. 

 
28. What is the server configuration supporting the current web site? 

 
Answer: Operating System: Windows 2008 SP2 (x86) Hardware; Intel Quad core CPU with 4 

GB of RAM. Storage; attached to VSP SAN. 
 

29. What is the current web/application hosting environment for the (www.mwaa.com) website? Is 
it a multiple server/load balanced platform? 
 
Answer: Current configurations consist of 3 physical servers; one back-end CMS/database 

server and 2 front-end web servers. Incoming traffic is managed by redundant load 
balancers. 

 
30. Is a sufficient continuity of operation process (cloud-based / offsite / warm site) in place to 

maintain availability/uptime of the website? 
 
Answer: The current setup includes redundant web servers managed by redundant load 

balancers.  We are looking into a second warm site. 
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31. Has the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority considered upgrading to OpenText Web 
Site Management? Why or why not? 
 
Answer: Yes. We are using Open Text Web Solutions – Web Site Management 10 (previously 

known as RedDot).  Upgrades are planned in the future.  
 

32. Does the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority need integration with other 
internal/external systems (i.e. emergency alerts, calendars, "report a problem", "My MWAA", 
etc.)? 
 
Answer: See response to question #5. 
 

33. Does the Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority foresee the need for content 
revision/copy writing services for the revamped website? 
 
Answer: No.   
 

34. The RFP mentions accepting real time and semi real time data from outside sources. Can the 
Authority provide more specific information on these systems? Are these systems integrated 
into the current website? 
 
Answer: See the response to question 5. 
 

35. What languages will be available? Will the Authority be providing the selected vendor with 
translated content or will the vendor be tasked with providing translations? 
 
Answer: See the response to question #4. 
 

36. The RFP mentions incorporating real time flight tracking. Can the Authority provide more 
information on the flight tracking system being used? 
 
Answer: See the response to question 5. 
 

37. The RFP mentions interactive maps. Will the Authority be providing the selected vendor with 
maps or will the vendor be tasked with creating these maps? 
 
Answer: No.  We do not expect the vendor to create maps.  
 

38. Can you please elaborate on what is meant by connectivity to Bulletin-Board private forums? 
Will the new site simply link out to a third party for this functionality? 
 
Answer: The forums would be on existing third-party Websites or blogs.  The connectivity 

should allow seamless linkage to the site or embedding the text within the MWAA 
site. 

 
39. Is the Authority interested in ongoing hosting services? 

 
Answer: No.  Not at this time. 
 

40. When the RFP refers to days, are they business days or calendar days? 
 
Answer: Calendar Days.    
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41. The RFP says the new website should have multi-lingual display capability and "foreign 
language translations (at least four (4) major ones). Does that mean there should be four 
versions of the website in different languages? If yes, what are the languages? If not, what 
does this mean? 
 
Answer: See the response to question #4. 
 

42. The RFP says the website should have "acceptable service level(s), fault tolerance, and up-
time." Aren't these server functions, which are maintained by the Authority and outside the 
responsibility of the contractor? 
 
Answer: Yes, those measures are, in large part, server functions (which are outside the 

responsibility of the contractor).  But they can be adversely impacted by inefficient 
code which in under the control of and the responsibility of the contractor.  
Statistics from January, 2013 indicate that the average time to serve a page from 
our current web site is just over one half second.  We do not want to see any 
significant degradation of that performance when our new web site is introduced.  
Nor do we want to see code induced system down time. 

 
43. The RFP says the website must demonstrate the "ability to handle bandwidth spikes caused 

by weather or news events." Again, isn't this outside the scope of the contract because these 
are functions of the infrastructure maintained by the Authority and not the website? 
 
Answer: See response to question 42.  Efficient (or inefficient) code design can affect the 

ability to handle usage spikes.  
 

44. Does the mobile version also need to display in foreign languages. 
 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

45. Can more information be provided about the data service for the MUFIDS data? 
 
Answer: No.   
 

46. Is there an existing datasource with an API that will be used for the site? 
 
Answer: Yes.  See response to question 5. 
 

47. Is the vendor expected to select a vendor or datasource for providing traffic or weather data? 
If so, what criteria and degree of accuracy is expected as part of this solution? 
 
Answer: Yes.  The data feed should be robust and reliable, and from a generally recognized 

source.  Accuracy of forecasts is not a criterion.  
 

48. Are live video feeds expected to be available for mobile, non-desktop devices? 
 
Answer:  No. 
 

49. Will the Authority provide access to full facility plans and schematics for the interactive map? 
 
Answer:  Yes, for public areas as available. 
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50. Is there a preferred or existing Bulletin Board platform in use, or is the bidding vendor 
expected to make a recommendation? 
 
Answer: No, there is not an existing bulletin board. Each offeror may make a 

recommendation. 
 

51. What level of documentation is expected for training and administration purposes? Would 
training incorporate both documentation as well as in-person training sessions? 
 
Answer: Full documentation is expected including documentation for training.   
 

52. Would training incorporate both documentation as well as in-person training sessions? 
 
Answer: Yes, both are expected.  For in-person training, there are a limited number of users 

who provide content updates directly and two technical support staff. 
 

53. For site analytics, is the vendor expected to make a recommendation on an analytics 
package?  
 
Answer: Yes.  
 

54. Are personally-identifiable analytics expected to be implemented as part of the next site 
phase, or is trend data acceptable? 
 
Answer: No, personally-identifiable analytics are not expected.  
 

55. What type of functionality is expected for Parking Reservations? Would this be a full e-
commerce and payment solution, or reservation only? Would users be able to have a 
historical record of their reservations, or would the system allow for ad-hoc reservations? 
 
Answer:  None. 
 

56. What languages are expected to be supported? Would all language be left-to-right reading, or 
would there be potential for right-to-left language support? 
 
Answer:  See the response to question #4. 
 

57. Would a secure web database be acceptable vs. email notifications for site forms? We 
consider handling feedback through email to open an additional security risk. 
 
Answer: No, a secure web database is not acceptable. E-mail notification is sufficiently 

secure. 
 

58. What type of advertising support is expected? Should the vendor be planning for PPC text-
based ads as well as rich media? 
 
Answer:  See the response to question #15. 
 

59. SOW Item #3: Ability to accept real-time and semi real-time data from inside and outside 
sources to display on Web page (e.g. Multi-User Flight Information System (MUFIDS), parking 
lot usage, current traffic conditions, etc.); 
- Are there any items not currently found on the website that should be added to this list? 
 
Answer: Yes, see response to question 5. 
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60. SOW Item #3: Ability to accept real-time and semi real-time data from inside and outside 

sources to display on Web page (e.g. Multi-User Flight Information System (MUFIDS), parking 
lot usage, current traffic conditions, etc.); 
- The parking lot usage currently just shows open and closed on the parking information, is 
that sufficient for this project? 
 
Answer: No, at DCA we also show available and total spaces.   
 

61. SOW Item #3: Ability to accept real-time and semi real-time data from inside and outside 
sources to display on Web page (e.g. Multi-User Flight Information System (MUFIDS), parking 
lot usage, current traffic conditions, etc.); 
- For current traffic condition, is text enough (ie, "There is a backup on the Dulles Toll 
Road")? Or does it need to be a map or video feed? 
 
Answer:   To be determined during the design phase. 
 

62. SOW Item #5: Ability to make parking reservations for both Airports; 
- We don't see this on the current site. Is this a new feature? If so, how will the user interact 
with this? Is it just a form to fill out or will they be able to see available parking reservation 
times? Once the user makes the request, is that request dumped into a system or is it just 
done via email and a manual process? 
 
Answer: Parking reservations will be a separate application requiring a link to be added to 

the web site. See Amendment 03.   
 

63. SOW Item #9: Multimedia with audio and streaming video; 
- Can you give some examples of audio or video you might want to stream? 
 
Answer: No.   
 

64. SOW Item #9: Multimedia with audio and streaming video; 
- Do you have any streaming servers/services currently set up for video streaming? 
 
Answer: No.    
 

65. SOW Item #13: Real-time flight tracking; 
- Currently on the site, you can see flights arrival and departure times and statuses. Is there 
any additional functionality that would need to be added? 
 
Answer: Real-time flight tracking information is an example of the kinds of additional data 

provider feeds referenced in the response to question #5.  
 

66. SOW Item #14: Interactive maps that are legible and offer a zoom option, directions, and way-
finding functionality (must include a method of publishing master construction, temporary 
restriction, and related information that affects the traveling public.); 
- Could you provide any examples of interactive maps you've seen on other sites that you 
would like to mimic? 
 
Answer: No. 
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67. The RFP states “the new website must provide streamlined and easy access to up-to-date 
Airport information . . .” 

a. How does MWAA intend to measure these goals?  Are there existing reports or 
analysis that you can share that would provide the current baseline for these 
goals? 

 
Answer: See Statement of Work and response to Question 42. 
 

68. Has MWAA conducted any user research?   
 
Answer: Yes, passenger surveys are regularly conducted.  
 

69. Are personas or similar artifacts available for review? 
 
Answer: No. 
 

70. What level of support is required for mobile (phone, tablets, etc)?  Is MWAA looking for 
something that works, or is fully optimized? 
 
Answer: See response to question 3. 
 

71. What desktop browsers must be supported? 
 
Answer:  Anything html 4 compliant and above.  We serve the travelling public and are still 

seeing access by Netscape and other older browser versions that indicate we 
should support a fairly low common denominator.  Also, we must comply with the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Section 508. 

 
72. How many content authors will use the CMS? 

 
Answer:  See response to question 16.  
 

73. What is the publication workflow? 
 
Answer: Varies by area. 
 

74. MWAA has indicated a need to support 4 languages.  Will there be a dedicated site for each 
language or will there be one site with content translated?   
 
Answer: One site with content translated. 
  

75. MWAA has indicated a need to support 4 languages.  Will all content be translated or only 
portions? 
 
Answer: Portions.  See Amendment 03.  
 

76. MWAA has indicated a need to support 4 languages.  Does the MWAA workflow require that a 
page be translated to all target languages before any version can go live, or can the primary 
language go live as soon as ready.  For example can the English version of the page go live 
right away, or must it wait until the Spanish page is also available. 
 
Answer: No current workflow exists as this feature is not present on the current website. 
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77. Describe how you are serving and managing ads on the site currently.  Is there a target revue 
level for the site ads? 
 
Answer: See the response to question #15. 
 

78. How many stakeholders at MWAA will participate in Creative design review and sign-off? 
 
Answer: Approximately 10.   
 

79. How many stakeholders at MWAA will participate in Technical architecture review and sign-
off? 
 
Answer: Approximately 10.   
 

80. How is ongoing search engine optimization managed by MWAA? 
 
Answer: Ongoing search engine optimization is not managed.  Settings within RedDot 

templates are adjusted to facilitate internal Google Search Appliance results for 
internal search terms submitted via the MWAA.com website.  Major search engines 
are checked monthly with random criteria of our airports and have found our 
website to be in the top 3 results, most often 1st. 

 
81. Can you provide the complete policy for the security audit? 

 
Answer: No.  The specific tests used during a third party security audit change over time (as 

the virus and malware landscape changes).  
 

82. What does MWAA consider an acceptable service level, fault tolerance and uptime? 
 
Answer: See the responses to questions #42 and #43. 
 

83. In MWAA’s assessment what % of the existing content will remain in the new site? 
 
Answer: Essentially all of it.  Information most often accessed should be the easiest to 

reach.  In some areas, the current information displayed may be replaced and/or 
expanded. 

 
84. Does MWAA require assistance from the vendor to migrate content? 

 
Answer: Migrating content is within scope of this project. 
 

85. Does MWAA require assistance from the vendor to manage the redirection of existing URLs to 
the new site? 
 
Answer: No.   
 

86. Can you please expand on “geographically tagged statistics”?  Is this a requirement to 
filter/segment your web analytics based on the location of the site visitors? 
 
Answer: Yes, we would like to know the composition of our site visitors by country (at a 

minimum).  Such information can prove useful in determining future languages to 
make available on the site as well as other decision made by the Authority. 
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87. Can MWAA specify which languages will be required for translation? 
 
Answer:  See the response to question #4. 
 

88. For the translations, does MWAA have a preference for an automated system of translations, 
versus actual humans making translations in their native tongues? 
 
Answer:  The Airports Authority is fine with using an automated system or link for the 

translations. 
 

89. Will all assets on the website require translation?   
 
Answer:  No. 
 

90. Will there be specific sub-sections for each language that are fairly static? (Example, will each 
press release added to the site also need to be translated?) 
 
Answer:  No. 
 

91. Can we get more information on the nature of the various assets: video feeds, parking 
reservation system, MUFIDS, bulletin Board etc. - will the existing systems be continued into 
the new site, or will there be a new data structure associated with these functionalities? 
 
Answer: See the response to question #5.  The existing systems will continue and additional 

potential data provider feeds are to be identified during the design phase.   
 

92. Will MWAA be responsible for porting new content into the site, once the CMS is set up? 
There are about 4,000 pages, so this is a big project element. 
 
Answer: No. Migrating content is within scope of this project. 
 

93. Will MWAA list out ALL of the data sources that will be tied into the site, and how/where those 
data sources will be accessed? It would be good to have an upfront sense of which/how many 
outside systems the developer (us) would be integrating and how deep that integration has to 
be. 
 
Answer: See the responses to questions #5 and #91.   
 

94. Will MWAA consider other CMS options? 
 
Answer: No. 
 

95. Is there an incumbent? If so who is it? 
 
Answer: The incumbent who managed the last web redesign is no longer with the Authority. 
 

96. Project duration:  How long for RFP 1-13-C044? 
 
Answer: Refer to SOW. 
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97. Are these open for all vendors or any particular set of preferred vendors? 
 
Answer: There is a 100% Local Disadvantaged Business requirement for this solicitation.  

There is no other preference. 
 

98. Is it advertised for local vendors only? 
 
Answer: There is a 100% Local Disadvantaged Business requirement for this solicitation. 
 

99. Is the hosting of the website included? 
 
Answer: No.  The Authority will host the website. 
 


